
DRAFT MINUTES 

TOWN OF APEX 1 
TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION 2 

TUESDAY, MARCH 18, 2025 3 
3:30 P.M. 4 

   5 
The Apex Town Council met for a work session on Tuesday, March18, 2025 at 3:30 p.m. at the 6 
Apex Town Hall located at 73 Hunter Street in Apex North Carolina.    7 
 8 
This meeting was open to the public.  Members of the public were able to attend this 9 
meeting in-person or watch online via the livestream on the Town’s YouTube Channel:   10 
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=ZSix5DaOgMg 11 
 12 
[ATTENDANCE]   13 
Elected Body     14 
Mayor Jacques K. Gilbert (presiding)   15 
Mayor Pro-Tempore Ed Gray     16 
Councilmember Brett Gantt   17 
Councilmember Arno Zegerman     18 
Councilmember Audra Killingsworth    19 
Councilmember Terry Mahaffey   20 
Absent: None 21 
    22 
Town Staff     23 
Town Manager Randy Vosburg     24 
Deputy Town Manager Shawn Purvis     25 
Assistant Town Manager Demetria John     26 
Assistant Town Manager Marty Stone    27 
Town Attorney Laurie Hohe     28 
Town Clerk Allen Coleman     29 
   30 
All other staff members will be identified appropriately below.    31 
   32 
[COMMENCMENT]    33 
    34 

Mayor Gilbert called the meeting to order at 3:30 p.m., welcomed everyone. He said 35 
Councilmember Killingsworth will be around 20 minutes late, then led everyone in the 36 
pledge of allegiance.     37 

Mayor Gilbert thanked for those who joined via livestream and transitioned into the 38 
team building activity from February’s Town Council Retreat.  39 
 Town Manager Vosburg introduced Elizabeth, a junior at Apex High School, who is 40 
participating in the Chamber’s Youth Leadership Program. He noted that the Chamber has 41 
added a new mentee/mentor component to the program this year, and he is serving as 42 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=ZSix5DaOgMg


DRAFT MINUTES | TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION - MARCH 18, 2025 

Page 2 of 40 
 

Elizabeth’s mentor throughout the process. He also shared that several other Town staff 1 
members are participating in the program as mentors. 2 
 Town Manager Vosburg then introduced Dr. Ruth Steidinger to present the results of 3 
the recent team-building activity.   4 
 5 
[TEAM BUILDING ACTIVITY FOLLOW-UP – TOWN COUNCIL REATREAT FEBRUARY 2025]  6 
 7 
 Dr. Ruth Steidinger, Owner and CEO of Steidinger Consulting, provided a follow-up 8 
to Town Council on the results of the team-building activity conducted during the February 9 
2025 Council Retreat. 10 
 11 
[HOUSING PROGRAM UPDATE] 12 
  13 
 Lamont Taylor, Housing Programs Manager with Community Development & 14 
Neighborhood Connections (CDNC), gave an overview of the information that would be 15 
presented. 16 
 17 
[SLIDE 1] 18 

 19 
 20 
 21 
 22 
 23 
 24 
 25 
 26 
 27 
 28 
 29 
 30 



DRAFT MINUTES | TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION - MARCH 18, 2025 

Page 3 of 40 
 

[SLIDE 2] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 3] 3 

 4 
 Mr. Taylor introduced Jeff Saucer, Consultant with Community Scale, who is the lead 5 
project team member.  6 
 Mr. Saucer provided overview of the project’s goals, initial observations, upcoming 7 
engagement opportunities, and outlined the next steps as the team moves forward finalizing 8 
the plan.  9 
 10 
 11 
 12 
 13 
 14 
 15 
 16 
 17 
 18 



DRAFT MINUTES | TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION - MARCH 18, 2025 

Page 4 of 40 
 

[SLIDE 1] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 2] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 3] 5 

 6 



DRAFT MINUTES | TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION - MARCH 18, 2025 

Page 5 of 40 
 

[SLIDE 4] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 5] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 6] 5 

 6 



DRAFT MINUTES | TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION - MARCH 18, 2025 

Page 6 of 40 
 

[SLIDE 7] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 8] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 9] 5 

 6 



DRAFT MINUTES | TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION - MARCH 18, 2025 

Page 7 of 40 
 

[SLIDE 10] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 11] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 12] 5 

 6 



DRAFT MINUTES | TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION - MARCH 18, 2025 

Page 8 of 40 
 

[SLIDE 13] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 14] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 15] 5 

 6 



DRAFT MINUTES | TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION - MARCH 18, 2025 

Page 9 of 40 
 

 Councilmember Gantt asked whether there is an existing policy that needs to be 1 
revised or if a new policy is needed to address issues related to the current housing stock. 2 
 Mr. Saucer explained that, over the long term, new development is expected to 3 
become denser. He emphasized the importance of implementing policies that help ensure 4 
the community is comfortable with increased levels of density. 5 
 Councilmember Zegerman noted the previously approved rezoning requests and 6 
asked how those approvals align with the goal of reaching 13,000 housing units being 7 
sought. 8 
 Mr. Saucer said this is great observation to determine how to translate these 9 
observations into new policies. He said they can look into if there have been missed 10 
opportunities and look at what has happened in recent years. 11 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked about how income brackets are quantified in this 12 
study. 13 
 Mr. Saucer stated that the brackets have been calibrated into six brackets in 14 
accordance with guidelines from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 15 
(HUD). 16 
 Councilmember Gantt recommended that the workshop exercise should include 17 
residents living in single-family homes and emphasized asking what residents would be 18 
happy with behind their property where road stubs are. 19 
 Mayor Pro Tempore Gray asked whether stakeholder meetings are planned and 20 
requested clarification on the groups involved. 21 
 Mr. Saucer confirmed a series of stakeholder meetings are scheduled. He noted 22 
meetings would include private developers, nonprofit developers, service providers, local 23 
planners, and regional planners. He said the upcoming events are intended for local 24 
residents across Apex.  25 
 Mr. Taylor resumed his presentation.  26 
 27 
[SLIDE 4] 28 

 29 
 30 



DRAFT MINUTES | TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION - MARCH 18, 2025 

Page 10 of 40 
 

[SLIDE 5] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 6] 3 

 4 
 Councilmember Gantt asked if there was a financing gap policy for the maximum per 5 
unit loan. 6 
 Director Newman said cost is relative. She explained that the funding gap arose 7 
because the combined commitments from the Town and Wake County at the time were 8 
insufficient to fully address the shortfall. The developer revisited and adjusted the financial 9 
plan, ultimately reducing the number of units to eliminate the funding gap.  10 
 Councilmember Zegerman wanted to confirm if there was an additional ask for a 11 
$1.5 million. 12 
 Director Newman said no, the ask is $1,470,000 total.    13 
 14 
 15 
 16 
 17 
 18 



DRAFT MINUTES | TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION - MARCH 18, 2025 

Page 11 of 40 
 

[SLIDE 7] 1 

 2 
 Councilmember Gantt said it seemed counterintuitive that the AMI would go down 3 
when the cost of the land is the same, and asked why a smaller development was better.  4 
 Director Newman stated that increased costs have contributed to the current 5 
situation.  6 

Assistant Town Manager John added that its now $175 per square foot (SF) in 7 
Raleigh.  8 
[SLIDE 8] 9 

 10 
 Councilmember Mahaffy asked about the new plan for Abby Springs is contingent 11 
on receiving the 9% tax credit. 12 
 Mr. Taylor said it is.  13 
 Councilmember Mahaffey asked is it realistically a competitive bid. 14 
 Director Newman said she thinks so, it’s 100% affordable, and because of the 15 
location it is in alignment with the public transit services as well.  16 



DRAFT MINUTES | TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION - MARCH 18, 2025 

Page 12 of 40 
 

 Assistant Town Manager John suggested that the Qualified Allocations Plan for 2025 1 
is likely to be more favorable for previously submitted projects that were not funded in the 2 
last round. 3 
 Councilmember Mahaffey asked what happened after the 9% tax credit.  4 
 Director Newman said the gap was too large. She said there was a $4 million gap 5 
that the Town or County couldn’t fill so the numbers had to be reworked.  6 
 Assistant Town Manager John explained that Wake County was overextended with 7 
projects prioritized in the Raleigh area. She stated that several meetings were held with Wake 8 
County to explore funding partnerships. Unfortunately, Wake County had to withdraw due to 9 
constraints related to the established service date, which could not be met. 10 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked if it’s possible to add a story to the building or was 11 
it prohibited because of regulations.  12 
 Director Newman said it was not due to cost of construction and adding additional 13 
units. 14 
 Councilmember Zegerman said it doesn’t seem logical that construction costs could 15 
be prohibitive given that the price of land and infrastructure remains consistent, and there 16 
isn’t much additional work required. 17 
 Director Newman said that one of the factors contributing to the project's increased 18 
competitiveness this round is the focus on deeper affordability, targeting approximately 30% 19 
of Area Median Income (AMI). She noted that this approach involves scaling the project to 20 
achieve greater affordability while still increasing the number of units. However, she 21 
emphasized the challenge of balancing the loss of income typically generated from higher-22 
income units. For tax credit projects, rent levels are capped at 60% AMI, which is appropriate, 23 
but previously the focus was primarily on 60% and some 50% AMI units, with less attention to 24 
30% AMI units. She highlighted that while construction costs remain consistent, the lower rent 25 
levels associated with 30% AMI units make it difficult to underwrite the debt service, 26 
representing a tradeoff. 27 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said he was looking at the debt ratio on the entire service. 28 
 Assistant Town Manager John said that one possibility is to go to the housing 29 
finance agency to see if they could go higher on the rents for a certain percentage.  30 
 Councilmember Zegerman said he wanted to make sure the town was not in the way 31 
of getting more units.  32 
 Director Newman said no, that was not the case. She said they considered many 33 
possibilities, but this was the best way for the math to work out. 34 
 35 
 36 
 37 
 38 
 39 
 40 
 41 
 42 



DRAFT MINUTES | TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION - MARCH 18, 2025 

Page 13 of 40 
 

[SLIDE 9] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 10] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 11] 5 

 6 



DRAFT MINUTES | TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION - MARCH 18, 2025 

Page 14 of 40 
 

 Director Newman introduced Andre Anthony, with Dorcas. He stated his partner Dr. 1 
Troy Hodges, Executive Director, of Western Practice Main Street, could not be in attendance, 2 
but thanked everyone for the opportunity to speak today regarding a Public-Private 3 
Partnership opportunity with Dorcas.  4 
[SLIDE 12] 5 

 6 
[SLIDE 13] 7 

 8 
 9 
 10 
 11 
 12 
 13 
 14 
 15 
 16 
 17 
 18 



DRAFT MINUTES | TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION - MARCH 18, 2025 

Page 15 of 40 
 

[SLIDE 14] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 15] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 16] 5 

 6 



DRAFT MINUTES | TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION - MARCH 18, 2025 

Page 16 of 40 
 

 Councilmember Gantt asked whether there are examples of similar developments in 1 
areas with secondary thoroughfares rather than major ones. He noted that the retail 2 
component appears intensive for a location that does not currently experience significant 3 
traffic. 4 
 Mr. Anthony said he doesn’t know all the different purpose-built communities. He 5 
said he has seen them in different kind of neighborhoods. 6 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked how big is the Southeast Raleigh side.  7 
 Mr. Anthony said he does not recall the whole gap.  8 
 Councilmember Zegerman said there is a school on a lot.  9 
 Mr. Anthony said there is a credit union there and affordable apartments that range 10 
up to three or four stories 11 
 Director Newman said the location is at Interstate 40 and Rock Quarry Road.  12 
 Assistant Town Manager John asked if Beacon was one of them.  13 
 Director Newman said yes.  14 
[SLIDE 17] 15 

 16 
 17 
 18 
 19 
 20 
 21 
 22 
 23 
 24 
 25 
 26 
 27 
 28 
 29 
 30 



DRAFT MINUTES | TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION - MARCH 18, 2025 

Page 17 of 40 
 

[SLIDE 18] 1 

 2 
 Councilmember Gantt said he is hopeful that the process could include a discussion 3 
about nearby parcels to explore potential opportunities. He mentioned uncertainty about 4 
whether the hospital intends to utilize all of its available land, noting the large grassy area 5 
across the street. He suggested it would be valuable to consider a broader vision that 6 
encompasses the entire intersection rather than focusing solely on the 12-acre site.  7 
 Director Newman proposed exploring the feasibility of relocating the health center 8 
to UNC property across the street in collaboration with relevant stakeholders. This approach, 9 
she suggested, could preserve existing site space for housing and green infrastructure while 10 
leveraging existing community assets. She emphasized the need to evaluate this option 11 
alongside the current site proposal, noting that the planning consultant's expertise would 12 
help determine the most strategic configuration for optimizing land use and community 13 
benefits.  14 
[SLIDE 19] 15 

 16 
 17 
 18 



DRAFT MINUTES | TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION - MARCH 18, 2025 

Page 18 of 40 
 

[SLIDE 20] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 21] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 22] 5 

 6 



DRAFT MINUTES | TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION - MARCH 18, 2025 

Page 19 of 40 
 

[SLIDE 23] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 24] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 25] 5 

 6 



DRAFT MINUTES | TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION - MARCH 18, 2025 

Page 20 of 40 
 

[SLIDE 26] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 27] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 28] 5 

 6 



DRAFT MINUTES | TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION - MARCH 18, 2025 

Page 21 of 40 
 

[SLIDE 29] 1 

 2 
 Councilmember Gantt expressed concern that some of the recommended changes 3 
appear to be more restrictive and counterintuitive. 4 
 Director Newman said that the plan includes introducing additional incentives, such 5 
as reductions in parking requirements, density bonuses, and other incentives that would help 6 
offset the cost of creating more affordable units.  7 
 Councilmember Gantt said the lack of participation may be due to the incentives not 8 
being strong enough. He suggested that the type of incentive most desirable to developers 9 
might be an automatic approval from Council if certain conditions were met. He questioned 10 
whether the current incentives are truly compelling and asked whether developers would 11 
actually be interested in pursuing greater density, as in some cases it appears that high-12 
density projects may not be well-suited to the surrounding area.  13 
 Director Newman said the developers don’t feel sufficiently incentivized. She said 14 
there are things they can look at to enhance those incentives. 15 
 Councilmember Gantt said the push back from residents is greater the more the 16 
town does incentivize things like density.  17 
 Director Newman said it’s also important to educate on affordable housing vs. 18 
making homes more affordable. 19 
 20 
 21 
 22 
 23 
 24 
 25 
 26 
 27 
 28 
 29 
 30 



DRAFT MINUTES | TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION - MARCH 18, 2025 

Page 22 of 40 
 

[SLIDE 30] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 31] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 32] 5 

 6 



DRAFT MINUTES | TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION - MARCH 18, 2025 

Page 23 of 40 
 

[SLIDE 33] 1 

 2 
 Councilmember Killingsworth asked when this was coming back to Council. 3 
 Director Newman said hopefully April.  4 
 Councilmember Zegerman stated that the initial presentation will offer important 5 
insights that should help shape future policy. He pointed out that higher density 6 
developments already lead to greater profits for developers, raising the question of why 7 
additional incentives are necessary. He also noted a disconnect between what is considered 8 
affordable in the policy and actual income levels, suggesting the current approach may not 9 
effectively serve the intended community. He emphasized that the housing plan 10 
recommendations need to directly inform policy decisions. 11 
 Mayor Gilbert asked about nonprofit developers. 12 
 Director Newman said they were included in one of the stakeholder meetings last 13 
month. She said they’ll be invited to join again to the public sessions next month at the table 14 
for both profit and nonprofit developers.  15 
 Town Manager Vosburg emphasized the importance of ensuring broad support for 16 
the initiative, noting that the goal is not merely incremental improvement but rather a more 17 
significant and impactful transformation. He suggested opening up to something that’s more 18 
drastic than what has been proposed.  19 
 Councilmembers indicated yes.  20 
 Councilmember Zegerman suggested tying the result to the first finding.  21 
 Mayor Gilbert thanked everyone for all the information.  22 
 23 
 24 
 25 
 26 
 27 
 28 
 29 
 30 



DRAFT MINUTES | TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION - MARCH 18, 2025 

Page 24 of 40 
 

[S-LINE MOBILITY HUB FEASIBILITY STUDY] 1 
  2 
Shannon Cox, Long Range Planning Manager, Planning Department, introduced Will 3 
Letchworth, Vice President of Transportation with McAdams who is presenting the Apex S-4 
Line Mobility Hub.  5 
[SLIDE 1] 6 

 7 
[SLIDE 2] 8 

 9 
 10 
 11 
 12 
 13 
 14 
 15 
 16 
 17 
 18 



DRAFT MINUTES | TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION - MARCH 18, 2025 

Page 25 of 40 
 

[SLIDE 3] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 4] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 5] 5 

 6 
 7 



DRAFT MINUTES | TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION - MARCH 18, 2025 

Page 26 of 40 
 

[SLIDE 6] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 7] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 8] 5 

 6 



DRAFT MINUTES | TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION - MARCH 18, 2025 

Page 27 of 40 
 

[SLIDE 9] 1 

 2 
 Councilmember Gantt expressed concern about commuter-based transit models that 3 
rely on large surface parking lots, noting they can be underutilized, uninviting, and 4 
detrimental to surrounding areas. He preferred transit options integrated into more vibrant, 5 
walkable areas, suggesting that the feedback supporting large park-and-ride models may not 6 
be suitable for Apex. 7 
 8 
[SLIDE 10] 9 

 10 
 11 
 12 
 13 
 14 
 15 
 16 
 17 
 18 



DRAFT MINUTES | TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION - MARCH 18, 2025 

Page 28 of 40 
 

[SLIDE 11] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 12] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 13] 5 

 6 



DRAFT MINUTES | TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION - MARCH 18, 2025 

Page 29 of 40 
 

[SLIDE 14] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 15] 3 

 4 
 Councilmember Gantt asked about the funding of phase one with the Wake Transit 5 
Plan.  6 
 Ms. Cox said the upcoming Wake Transit Plan, expected in May, includes multi-million 7 
dollar estimates for mobility hubs, though it does not yet outline specific features or identify 8 
which locations will be prioritized. She noted that, with bus routes planned for Apex, an Apex 9 
mobility hub would likely be a high priority. She also explained that while Phase 2 involves 10 
rail, Phase 3—which includes a pedestrian crossing over East Williams Street—could be 11 
constructed in coordination with Phase 1. 12 
 13 
 14 
 15 
 16 
 17 
 18 



DRAFT MINUTES | TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION - MARCH 18, 2025 

Page 30 of 40 
 

[SLIDE 16] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 17] 3 

 4 
 Councilmember Mahaffey asked whether the property owners are open to a shared 5 
maintenance agreement, with the Town responsible for maintaining the parking lot. 6 
 Mr. Letchworth said yes, noting that while the topic was discussed, they did not go 7 
into extensive detail.  8 
 Ms. Cox said that there is a public process for Olive Chapel Professional Park, as 9 
GoApex turns around there.  10 
 11 
 12 
 13 
 14 
 15 
 16 
 17 
 18 



DRAFT MINUTES | TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION - MARCH 18, 2025 

Page 31 of 40 
 

[SLIDE 18] 1 

 2 
 3 
[SLIDE 19] 4 

 5 
[SLIDE 20] 6 

 7 
 8 
 9 



DRAFT MINUTES | TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION - MARCH 18, 2025 

Page 32 of 40 
 

[SLIDE 21] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 22] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 23] 5 

 6 



DRAFT MINUTES | TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION - MARCH 18, 2025 

Page 33 of 40 
 

[SLIDE 24] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 25] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 26] 5 

 6 



DRAFT MINUTES | TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION - MARCH 18, 2025 

Page 34 of 40 
 

[SLIDE 27] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 28] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 29] 5 

 6 



DRAFT MINUTES | TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION - MARCH 18, 2025 

Page 35 of 40 
 

[SLIDE 30] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 31] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 32] 5 

 6 



DRAFT MINUTES | TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION - MARCH 18, 2025 

Page 36 of 40 
 

[SLIDE 33] 1 

 2 
 Councilmember Zegerman said the main line is the line to the east so loading and 3 
unloading is in either direction.  4 
 Mr. Letchworth said yes.  5 
[SLIDE 34] 6 

 7 
 8 
 9 
 10 
 11 
 12 
 13 
 14 
 15 
 16 
 17 
 18 



DRAFT MINUTES | TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION - MARCH 18, 2025 

Page 37 of 40 
 

[SLIDE 35] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 36] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 37] 5 

 6 



DRAFT MINUTES | TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION - MARCH 18, 2025 

Page 38 of 40 
 

[SLIDE 38] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 39] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 40] 5 

 6 



DRAFT MINUTES | TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION - MARCH 18, 2025 

Page 39 of 40 
 

[SLIDE 41] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 42] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 43] 5 

 6 



DRAFT MINUTES | TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION - MARCH 18, 2025 

Page 40 of 40 
 

[SLIDE 44] 1 

 2 
 Mayor Gilbert asked if there were any questions.  3 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said he will save his questions for the Public Hearing.  4 
 5 
 6 
 [ADJOURNEMENT]    7 
 8 
    9 

Mayor Gilbert adjourned the meeting at 6:09 p.m.  10 
  11 
   12 

Jacques K. Gilbert   13 
Apex, Mayor   14 

  15 
 Allen Coleman, CMC, NCCCC     16 
Town Clerk to the Apex Town Council     17 
    18 
Submitted for approval by Apex Town Clerk Allen Coleman    19 
    20 
Minutes approved on _______ of ___________, 2025.    21 
 22 


